
 
 
 

Mr S Hearse 
Chief Executive 
Torridge District Council 

Riverbank House 
Bideford 

Devon 
EX39 2QG 
 

DX 53606 BIDEFORD 
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700 

 

 

 

 
Date: 27 September 2021 

 

EXTRAORDINARY FULL COUNCIL MEETING 
 

On: Tuesday 5 October 2021 At: 6.30 pm 

Venue: Caddsdown Business Support Centre, Clovelly Road, Bideford - Bideford 

 
From the 7 May 2021, the law requires all councils to hold formal meetings in person. The Council is 
also required to follow Government guidance and ensure that all venues used are Covid secure and 

that all appropriate measures are put in place. Members of the public will be able to attend the 
meeting in person if they are registered to speak under public participation. Any members of the 

public who want to view the meeting will be able to watch through the Councils YouTube Channel  
https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

You are hereby summoned to the Meeting of the District Council at the aforementioned date and time  
 

 
 

Chief Executive  

 

To: Councillor D Bushby (Chair) 

Councillor P Christie (Vice-Chair) 
Councillors: R Boughton, D Brenton, C Bright, M Brown, R Clarke, C Cottle-
Hunkin, R Craigie, A Dart, L Ford, J Gubb, P Hackett, P Hames, S Harding, 

C Hawkins, K Hepple, R Hicks, C Hodson, D Hurley, J Hutchings, T Inch, 
K James, D Jones, S Langford, N Laws, C Leather, R Lock, J Manley, 

D McGeough, J McKenzie, S Newton, P Pennington, G Rossi, P Watson and 
R Wiseman 

 
Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting 

 
 

 

https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube


 
 

 

AGENDA 
PART I - (OPEN SESSION) 

  

1.   Apologies For Absence  

 To receive apologies for absence from the meeting 
 

2.   Public Contributions  

 15 minute period for public contributions. The deadline for registering to speak is by 
2pm Friday 1st October 2021. To register please email dem.services@torridge.gov.uk  

 

3.   Declarations of interest  

 Members with interests to declare should refer to the Agenda item and describe the 

nature of their interest when the item is being discussed. 
 

4.   Agreement of Agenda Items Part I and II  

5.   To consider correspondence or other business especially brought forward by 

the direction of the Chair  

6.   To answer questions submitted under Procedural Rule A9  

7.   Planning Policy Governance (Pages 3 - 33) 

 To receive the report of the Planning Manager 
 

8.   Northern Devon Futures (Pages 34 - 50) 

 To receive the report of the Chief Executive. 
 

9.   Petitions  

 To receive petitions (if any) 
 

10.   Notices of Motion  

11.   Exclusion of Public  

 The Chair to move: 
 
“That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 

disclosure of exempt information as defined in Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972” 

 

12.   PART II - (CLOSED SESSION)  

  

Items which may be taken in the absence of the public and press on the grounds that 
exempt information may be disclosed. 
 

 Meeting Organiser: Democratic Services 

mailto:dem.services@torridge.gov.uk


 
  

REPORT OF Planning Manager 

To: Full Council 

Subject: Review of Planning Policy Governance Arrangements 

Date: 5th October 2021 Reference:  

 
 

 
PURPOSE OF REPORT: To consider proposals for the review of governance arrangements 

relating to the review of the North Devon & Torridge Local Plan 2011-2031 and wider planning 
policy. 

 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 

 
1.1. Section 28 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 enables two or more Local 

Planning Authorities to agree to prepare a joint Local Plan. North Devon Council (NDC) & 
Torridge District Council (TDC) resolved to review and update the North Devon & Torridge 
Local Plan 2011-2031 at Full Council Meetings of the 25th November 2020 (NDC) & 14th 
December 2020 (TDC) respectively.  
 

1.2. The above resolution recommended that the governance arrangements for the preparation 
of the Local Plan be reviewed to ensure inclusive, effective, and efficient oversight and 
engagement. This report proposes the establishment of a Joint Planning Policy Committee 
to have oversight of the preparation, review and approval of Development Plan Documents 
and other functions relating to planning policy to facilitate efficient joint working on planning 
policy matters that affect the partner Councils.  

 
 
2. REPORT 

 

2.1. It is important that a Local Plan review is subject to robust governance arrangements to 
ensure appropriate oversight, critical review and engagement whilst balancing that 
requirement with a need for an efficient and effective process.  
 

2.2. The Planning Advisory Service (PAS) were engaged to provide a ‘Local Plan Gateway 
Review’ in February 2021 with advice and recommendations being received in May 2021. 
This Review considered the challenges and opportunities that the Councils are facing in 
progressing the Local Plan Review and provides a summary of findings and recommended 
next steps. 

 
2.3. In terms of governance arrangements, the Review stated ‘The review of the current 

governance arrangements should be progressed as soon as possible. Streamlining of 
governance arrangements, such as through the establishment of a Joint Local Plan 
Committee, would support an efficient and effective way of maintaining momentum on 
progressing the updating of the adopted Local Plan and provide greater certainty in terms of 
the commitment to joint planning gin the area. It would also enable a more effective use of 
Officer resources by only having to support, for the main part, one decision-making body’. 

 
Existing Governance Arrangements 
 

2.4. The preparation of the current adopted Local Plan was effectively overseen by the advisory 
joint Local Plan Working Group, which discussed the draft policy options, policy wording, 

Page 3

Agenda Item 7



 
  

and evidence documents informally prior to being agreed formally and separately by each 
Council.  

 
2.5. The terms of reference of the Working Group stated that the North Devon & Torridge Local 

Plan Working Group is a group of elected members who meet periodically to facilitate and 
promote efficient joint working on planning documents that affect North Devon & Torridge 
District Councils. 

 
2.6. The Working Group comprises 8 Members; 4 from NDC and 4 from TDC, with the 

Chairperson being appointed annually and alternating between the two District Councils 
unless agreed by the Working Group as a whole. As the Working Group is advisory and has 
no delegated decision-making powers, the meetings lack public participation given the 
informal status of the Group. 
 

2.7. This approach was effective at streamlining the time-consuming plan preparation process 
by minimising the number of reports to be taken to formal committees, however at points it 
had the effect of restricting active engagement to a more limited number of members. As 
the Working Group isn’t a public facing formal Committee, the opportunities for 
transparency in the planning system are also reduced. Whilst the working group has 
provided suitable governance during the preparation of the adopted North Devon and 
Torridge Local Plan, given the requirement to review these governance arrangements, 
Officers have considered an alternative option. 

 
Proposed Governance Arrangements 
 

2.8. Since the formation of the Working Group, the social, economic, environmental, and political 
context has changed significantly as well as some uncertainty as to when and in what form 
planning reforms will take following the Governments Planning White Paper. National and 
Local changes that have taken place include (but are not limited to): 

 

 Social & economic shifts due to COVID-19; 

 Emergence of the Government’s green agenda – the Environment Bill & 25 Year 
Environment Plan; 

 Continuing planning reforms; 
 National emphasis on housing delivery; 

 Declaration of Climate & Biodiversity emergencies, 

 Increasing emphasis on environmental considerations and carbon saving; 

 Delivery of affordable housing and wider housing affordability / delivery; 

 Issues of Coastal erosion & flooding; 

 Changes and reforms to the agricultural sector; 

 Changing context to the Tourism sector. 
 

2.9. In order to ensure that the Development Plan and wider planning policy provides 
appropriate visions, strategies and polices to successfully shape how northern Devon 
develops, Governance arrangements should provide sufficient breadth of skills and 
experience to reflect a wide range of national and local issues in an efficient and effective 
manner. To this end, Officers have explored and propose the formation of a joint Planning 
Policy Committee. 
 

2.10. A draft agreement for a joint Planning Policy Committee is appended to this report 
which seeks to ensure continuing equitable partnership working on planning policy between 
NDC & TDC. Given the range of matters considered within planning policy and to ensure 
that active Member engagement is widened, it is proposed that each Council will appoint 
seven Members as its nominated Members of the Joint Committee. The Membership will 
include the Leader of each Council, and Lead Members for Economy, Environment, 

Page 4



 
  

Climate, Planning, Housing and Community from TDC with the equivalent from NDC, or 
such other members as TDC or NDC shall consider appropriate. 

 
2.11. It is felt that making the Committee non-politically balanced will ensure flexibility in 

membership to further the objectives of the Joint Committee.  A recommendation has been 
included to deal with this matter.   

 
2.12. It is proposed that the Chairperson will be appointed annually, and alternate between 

the two District Councils, with the Council which has not appointed the Chairperson 
appointing a vice chairperson for that term. The joint Committee would meet once every 
quarter, unless otherwise determined by the joint Committee. Continuing the theme of joint 
working, Officers have agreed Support Services for the Committee would be shared, with 
TDC providing Legal support & advice, and NDC providing Governance and secretarial 
support. 

 
2.13. To be effective and efficient, it is proposed that the Joint Committee shall be 

responsible for and shall have delegated to it the following functions of the Partner Councils: 
 

 The preparation, review and/or approval of  
o Development Plan Documents; 
o Supplementary Planning Documents; 
o Joint documents that supplement/complement the Development Plan 

Documents (Namely, Local Development Schemes, Statements of 
Community Involvement, Authority Monitoring Reports and Infrastructure 
Funding Statements); 

o The outcomes from policy performance monitoring and the need to undertake 
any resultant actions, on such matters as the maintenance of housing 
delivery rates and a joint five year land supply to required levels; 

o Proposals for delivery of key infrastructure (e.g. flood defences, link road 
improvements, health infrastructure) where there are clear cross boundary 
implications; and 

o Responses to consultations from the government, other authorities, external 
agencies and other bodies, including transportation related consultations, 
where they would have a significant impact on the delivery of the Local Plan 
or on the Districts’ environment. 

 The consideration and noting of associated evidence documents (for example, 
Sustainability Appraisals and Habitat Regulations Assessments) 
 

2.14. The delegated powers referred to above will prevent the need for reports to be taken 
to each individual Council at key decision-making stages of the Local Plan as has 
historically been the case. However, the delegated powers are not proposed to extend to 
the final adoption of the Local Plan which will be referred back as a recommendation by the 
Joint Committee for a decision as to adoption by each individual Council. Such final 
adoption by the individual Full Councils is in accordance with regulation 4(1) and (3) of the 
Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000. 
 

2.15. In order to ensure flexibility, it is proposed that the joint Committee may appoint task 
teams or working groups to consider specific related matters. Such groups would not be 
individual decision making bodies but will report back to the Joint Committee. 

 
2.16. North Devon & Torridge District Councils already successfully operate a joint 

Committee in the form of the North Devon Crematorium Joint Committee and it is 
considered the Joint Committee the subject of this report would likewise provide a 
successful joint governance mechanism.   

 
2.17. The benefits of a Joint Committee are considered to include – 

Page 5



 
  

 

 Efficiency of process, with a single Committee being a decision-making body for key 
decision making stages up to, but not including final adoption; 

 Additional transparency and stakeholder engagement given the status as a formal 
Committee; 

 Wider breadth of Membership with experience and skills to contribute to successful 
consideration of local matters and Plan making; 

 Flexibility provided by potential task teams or working groups; 

 Provide further commitment to joint planning within northern Devon; 

 Efficient use of resources due to support services and costs bring shared across the 
two Councils. 

 Flexibility for further joint working within the Committee structure such as possible 
future consideration of budget management. 

 
 

3. IMPLICATIONS 

 
Legal Implications 
 

3.1. The Councils would enter into a legal Agreement for a Joint Planning Policy Committee in 
reliance on the exclusive rights given to local authorities to undertake administrative 
arrangements of this nature in section 101, 102, 112 and 113 of the 1972 Act and the 
regulations made under the 1972 Act; together with the general power within section 1 of 
the Localism Act 2011. 

 
Financial Implications 
 

3.2. Annual costs relating to the operation of the Joint Committee shall be shared in equal 
proportions between the two Councils.     

 
Human Resources Implications 
 

3.3. The operation of a Joint Committee will be met by existing resources within TDC & NDC. 
 

 
Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications 

 
3.4. A more efficient governance process and wider active Member participation will aid effective 

review of the Local Plan and wider Planning Policy. Section 39 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended) requires local planning authorities to 
exercise their functions in relation to plan making with the objective of contributing to the 
achievement of sustainable development. 

 
Equality/Diversity 

 
3.5. The review of the North Devon and Torridge Local Plan is an action to meet TDCs strategic 

priorities to ensure that the Local Plan remains relevant for good development that unlocks 
investment and opportunity, protects our important natural assets and helps to create strong 
and resilient communities. Review of governance arrangements is intrinsic to the Local Plan 
Review. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



 
  

Risk Management 
 

3.6. None 
 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
 

3.7. This report is in accordance with the Council’s Constitution 
 
Data Protection (GDPR) Implications 

 
3.8. No identified issues relating to data protection. Appropriate arrangements will be put in 

place to ensure that all personal information associated with the joint Committees activities 
is processed appropriately in accordance with data protection principles and requirements. 

 
Climate Change 

 
3.9. A more efficient governance process and wider active Member participation will aid review 

of the Local Plan providing the opportunity to consider how the Council should respond, 
through planning, to climate change; including the local declaration of the climate 
emergency, and to other influences such as the provisions of the Government’s 25 Year 
Environment Plan. 

 
Leader & Lead Member Views 
 
Leader – Cllr James: 
 
I fully support the proposal to form a joint planning policy committee with North Devon 
Council. Whilst the Local Plan Working Group has previously provided guidance on the 
formation of Planning Policy, the proposed joint committee now provides the opportunity to 
increase Member involvement and provide an efficient method for consideration of our future 
planning policies to the benefit of our District.   
 
Lead Member for Planning – Cllr Watson: 
 
I welcome this proposal to continue our partnership working with NDC and the formation of a 
joint committee. Local Plan review and Planning Policy consideration is key to the success of 
our district and realising the visions of our communities. The proposed governance 
arrangements will contribute to efficient working and wider Member involvement.   
 
 

4. CONCLUSIONS 
 

4.1. Full Council have previously resolved to review the governance arrangements for the 
preparation of the Local Plan to ensure inclusive, effective, and efficient oversight and 
engagement. It is considered that there are clear reasons for the formation of a Joint 
Committee which include providing robust governance arrangements to meet the desired 
appropriate oversight, and wider engagement.  
 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

5.1. That Members agree to the formation of a Joint Planning Policy Committee in accordance 
with the ‘Agreement for a Joint Planning Policy Committee’ appended to this Report (subject 
to a successful North Devon Council resolution for the same).   
 

Page 7



 
  

5.2. That alternative arrangements for political balance under s17(1) Local Government and 
Housing Act 1989 are approved and that membership of the Joint Committee be as set out 
in the Agreement and as determined by Full Council. 
   

 
 
 
 
 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
 Consultations: Chief Executive 

Head of Communities & Place 
Head of Legal & Governance & Monitoring Officer 
Legal Services Manager 
 

 Contact Officer: Planning Manager: Shaun Harrington 

 Background Papers: Local Government Act 1972 
Localism Act 2011 
Town and Country Planning Act (1990) as amended 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (2004) as amended 
Planning Act (2008) as amended 
National Planning Policy Framework (2018) 
Planning Practice Guidance (updated online) 
Town & Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 
2012 
North Devon and Torridge Local Plan 2011 – 2031 (adopted 
October 2018) 

 
 
Appendix 1: Agreement for a Joint Planning Policy Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



 
 

Dated                                                                                                      2021 

NORTH DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL 

and 

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

AGREEMENT FOR A JOINT PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE 

Page 9



 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1. Definitions ..................................................................................................................... 1 

2. The Partnership ........................................................................................................... 3 
3. Support Services ......................................................................................................... 4 

4. Costs and liabilities in respect of the Joint Committee .......................................... 4 
5. Insurance ...................................................................................................................... 5 
6. Financial arrangements for the Joint Committee ................................................... 5 

7. Duration of the Agreement......................................................................................... 6 
8. Variations to this Agreement ..................................................................................... 6 

9. Withdrawal from the Joint Committee ...................................................................... 6 
10. Termination of this Agreement .................................................................................. 7 
11. Internal Dispute Resolution........................................................................................ 7 

12. Arbitration ..................................................................................................................... 8 
13. Notices .......................................................................................................................... 8 

15. Data Protection ............................................................................................................ 9 
16. Audit.............................................................................................................................11 
17. Intellectual Property ..................................................................................................11 

18. Force Majeure ............................................................................................................12 
19. Severability .................................................................................................................12 

20. Successors .................................................................................................................12 
21. Relationship of the parties .......................................................................................12 
22. Third party rights........................................................................................................12 

23. Entire agreement .......................................................................................................12 
24. Governing law ............................................................................................................13 

SCHEDULE 1 Terms of Reference of the Joint Committee ...........................................14 
SCHEDULE 2 Agreed Functions ........................................................................................20 
SCHEDULE 3 Support Services  ........................................................................................22 

SCHEDULE 4 Financial Arrangements .............................................................................23 
 

Page 10



 

1 

THIS DEED is dated  

Between 

The parties to this Agreement are: 

(1) NORTH DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL of Lynton House, Commercial Road, 
Barnstaple, Devon EX31 1DG (NDDC); and 

(2) TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL of Riverbank House, Bideford, Devon 
EX39 2QG (TDC). 

Background 

(A) NDDC and TDC (referred to collectively in this Agreement as the Partner 

Authorities) are local authorities constituted by the Local Government Act 

1972 (1972 Act). 

(B) The Partner Authorities have agreed to establish and to participate in a joint 

committee (Joint Committee) to facilitate a partnership to have oversight of 

the preparation, review and approval of the Development Plan Documents 

and perform other Agreed Functions in order to facilitate efficient joint working 

on planning matters that affect the Partner Authorities (Partnership). 

(C) The Partner Authorities have entered into this Agreement in reliance on the 

exclusive rights given to local authorities to undertake administrative 

arrangements of this nature in section 101, 102, 112 and 113 of the 1972 Act 

and the regulations made under the 1972 Act; together with the general power 

within section 1 of the Localism Act 2011. 

Agreed terms 

1. Definitions 

1.1 In this Agreement the following terms shall have the following meanings: 

Agreed Functions: those functions set out at Schedule 2 which have been 

delegated to the Joint Committee in the manner described in Schedule 1. 

Chief Executive: an officer designated by a Partner Authority as the Partner 

Authority’s head of paid service in accordance with section 4 of the Local 
Government Act 1989. 

Commencement Date: the date of this Agreement. 

Controller, data controller, processor, data processor, data subject, 
personal data, processing and appropriate technical and organisational 

measures: as set out in the Data Protection Legislation in force at the time. 

Data Protection Legislation: (i) the Data Protection Act 2018; (ii) the 

General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) as enacted into English law and 
as revised and superseded from time to time; (iii) the Privacy and Electronic 
Communications (EC Directive) Regulations 2003; and (iv) any other laws 

and regulations relating to the processing of personal data and privacy which 

Page 11



 

2 

apply to a party and, if applicable, the guidance and codes of practice issued 
by the relevant data protection or supervisory authority. 

EIR: Environmental Information Regulations 2004. 

FOIA: Freedom of Information Act 2000. 

Force Majeure Event: any cause affecting the performance by a party of its 

obligations under this agreement arising from acts, events, omissions or 
non-events beyond its reasonable control, including acts of God, riots, war, 

acts of terrorism, fire, flood, storm or earthquake and any disaster, but 
excluding any industrial dispute relating to either party, either party’s 

personnel or any other failure in either party's supply chain. 

Information: has the meaning given under section 84 of FOIA. 

Intellectual Property Rights: any and all intellectual property rights of any 

nature anywhere in the world whether registered, registerable or otherwise, 
including patents, utility models, trade marks, registered designs and domain 

names, applications for any of the foregoing, trade or business names, 
goodwill, copyright and rights in the nature of copyright, design rights, rights 
in databases, moral rights, know-how and any other intellectual property 

rights which subsist in computer software, computer programs, websites, 
documents, information, techniques, business methods, drawings, logos, 

instruction manuals, lists and procedures and particulars of customers, 
marketing methods and procedures and advertising literature, including the 
"look and feel" of any websites. 

Lead Authority: where applicable, the Partner Authority named as such for 

a Support Service in Schedule 3. 

Non-Restricted Items: Items not including the disclosure of exempt 

information as defined in Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 

Partnership Leader: the officer(s) with responsibility for managing the 

Agreed Functions on behalf of each of the Partner Authorities. 

Permitted Recipients: The parties to this agreement, the employees of 

each party, any third parties engaged to perform obligations in connection 
with this agreement and any other permitted recipient as agreed by the 
parties. 

Personal Data: shall have the same meaning as set out in the Data 

Protection Legislation. 

Restricted Items: Items including the disclosure of exempt information as 

defined in Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 
  

Request for Information: a request for information or an apparent request 

under the Code of Practice on Access to Government Information, FOIA or 

the EIR. 
Section 151 Officer: the officer designated by a local authority as the 

person responsible for the proper administration of its financial affairs, as 
required by section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972.Support 
Services: those services, detailed in Schedule 3, or any additional support 

Page 12



 

3 

services added in accordance with clause 3.2, which are required to assist 
the Joint Committee in the discharge of the Agreed Functions. 

Terms of Reference of the Joint Committee:  the terms of reference set 

out at Schedule 1. 

Working Day: Monday to Friday, excluding any public holidays in England 

and Wales. 

1.2 Clause, schedule and paragraph headings shall not affect the interpretation 

of this agreement.  

1.3 The schedules form part of this agreement and shall have effect as if set out 

in full in the body of this agreement and any reference to this agreement 
includes the schedules.  

1.4 Words in the singular shall include the plural and vice versa.  

1.5 A reference to one gender shall include a reference to the other genders.  

1.6 A reference to a statute or statutory provision is a reference to it as it is in 

force for the time being, taking account of any amendment, extension, or re-
enactment and includes any subordinate legislation for the time being in 
force made under it.  

1.7 A reference to writing or written includes faxes and e-mail.  

1.8 Any obligation in this agreement not to do something includes an obligation 

not to agree or allow that thing to be done. 

1.9 A reference to a document is a reference to that document as varied or 
novated (in each case, other than in breach of the provisions of this 

agreement) at any time. 

1.10 References to clauses and schedules are to the clauses and schedules of 

this agreement; references to paragraphs are to paragraphs of the relevant 
schedule. 

2. The Partnership 

2.1 In exercise of their powers under sections 101(5) and 102 of the 1972 Act, 
sections 19 and 20 of the Local Government Act 2000, and all other enabling 

powers, the Partner Authorities agree to work together in the provision of 
Agreed Functions to be delivered through a Joint Committee which shall be 
constituted and conduct its business in accordance with this Agreement, 

including the Terms of Reference set out in Schedule 1 with effect from the 
Commencement Date. 

2.2 The Partner Authorities shall each delegate and empower the Joint 
Committee to discharge on its behalf the Agreed Functions as set out in 
Schedule 2 and empowers the Joint Committee to arrange for the discharge 

of the Agreed Functions or any part or parts of them by any sub-committee 
or by any officer of the Partner Authorities so appointed and section 101(2) 

of the 1972 Act shall apply in relation to the Agreed Functions as it applies in 
relation to the functions of the Partner Authorities. 

Page 13



 

4 

3. Support Services 

3.1 Support Services shall be provided by the Partner Authorities as may be 

necessary to support the Joint Committee in the discharge of the Agreed 
Functions. 

3.2 If either Partner Authority believes that additional Support Services may be 
required for the effective discharge of the Agreed Functions it shall consult 
the other Partner Authority to reach agreement as to the appropriate way of 

providing the additional Support Services.  If the Partner Authorities are 
unable to agree the appropriate way of providing the additional Support 

Services the matter shall be dealt with in accordance with the dispute 
resolution procedure set out at clause 11. 

4. Costs and liabilities in respect of the Joint Committee 

4.1 All losses, claims, expenses, actions, demands, costs and liabilities incurred 
by the Joint Committee and in fulfilling obligations under this Agreement shall 

be shared by the Partner Authorities on such terms as may be agreed from 
time to time between the Partner Authorities. 

4.2 Each Partner Authority shall (and hereby undertakes with the other Partner 

Authority to) indemnify the other Partner Authority against, and/or contribute 
to and pay a share of, all or any liabilities, claims, costs and/or expenses of 

or incurred by that Partner Authority arising out of, or in connection with, or in 
the course of, or as a result of, it being a member of the Joint Committee and 
fulfilling its obligations under this Agreement with the intent that the Partner 

Authority being indemnified and the other Partner Authority shall be jointly 
liable for all such liability to claims, costs and/or expenses unless otherwise 

agreed. 

4.3 This clause 4 shall be subject to such indemnity, on the part of the Partner 
Authorities, not extending to liabilities or claims arising or costs and/or 

expenses incurred by reason or in consequence of any of the following on 
the part of the Partner Authority seeking to be indemnified: 

4.3.1 breach by the Partner Authority of its obligations under this 
Agreement; 

4.3.2 gross negligence;  

4.3.3 gross misconduct;  

4.3.4 persistent breach of law or duty (that is to say the Partner Authority 

persisted in the breach of law or duty after the same was drawn to its 
attention); 

4.3.5 any act or omission known or that should have been known to the 

relevant Partner Authority to be contrary to proper practice as a local 
authority or local government law; or  

4.3.6 substantial or persistent failure (after reasonable notice) to redress 
performance of the duties of the relevant Partner Authority to comply 
with the requirements or the standards of, or set out in, this 

Agreement. 

Page 14



 

5 

4.4 For the avoidance of doubt such indemnity as is referred to in this clause 4 
shall include, but not be limited to, matters relating to the employment and 

transfer of staff, losses, costs, expenses or liabilities arising from contracts 
with third parties and in relation to assets. 

4.5 This clause 4 shall survive the expiry or determination of this Agreement. 

5. Insurance 

5.1 Each Partner Authority shall ensure that: 

5.1.1 it maintains throughout the duration of this Agreement (or procures 
the taking out and maintenance of) adequate insurance to the levels 

set out in clause 5.2 and such other insurances which may be 
required by legislation; 

5.1.2 the insurance obtained is effective no later than the date on which 

the relevant risk commences; 

5.1.3 it is responsible for meeting, and promptly pays all costs of, all 

insurance premiums for the insurances referred to in clause 5.2; and 

5.1.4 upon written request it provides to the other Partner Authority making 
the written request: 

5.1.4.1 copies of all insurance policies required under this clause 
5; 

5.1.4.2 evidence that all of the premiums payable under such 
insurance policies have been paid in full; and 

5.1.4.3 evidence that the insurances remain in full force and 

effect. 

5.2 Each Partner Authority shall ensure that at all times an adequate level of 

insurance is maintained by it from the Commencement Date and throughout 
the duration of this Agreement in respect of the provision of the Agreed 
Functions. 

5.3 Each Partner Authority warrants to the other that, as at the date of this 
Agreement: 

5.3.1 it has provided a copy of this Agreement to its insurer; and 

5.3.2 upon receipt of a notice from an insurer to a Partner Authority that 
the terms of the insurances required under this clause 5 have 

changed or that the insurer withdraws its insurance that Partner 
Authority shall promptly notify the other and use it best endeavours 

to forthwith obtain replacement insurance at the levels as required 
under this clause 5. 

6. Financial arrangements for the Joint Committee 

6.1 The financial arrangements for the Joint Committee shall be as provided at 
Schedule 4 of this Agreement. 

6.2 If any Partner Authority disagrees with the amount of their contribution 
payable in accordance with Schedule 4 then they may pursue the dispute 

Page 15



 

6 

resolution procedure set out in clause 11 or may terminate their involvement 
in the Joint Committee in accordance with clause 10. 

6.3 The section 151 officer of each Partner Authority, and other officers 
authorised by the section 151 officer, shall have access at all reasonable 

times, and with due notice, to the relevant financial records of the Partner 
Authorities and shall be entitled to seek explanations concerning queries 
relating thereto. 

6.4 In addition to clause 6.3, for the purposes of carrying out an audit 
appropriately authorised staff of a Partner Authority, or third party 

organisations appointed by a Partner Authority for this purpose, may access 
all records, assets, personnel and premises, including those of partner 
organisations and shall have the authority to obtain such information and 

explanations as they consider necessary to fulfil their auditing 
responsibilities. 

7. Duration of the Agreement 

This Agreement shall come into force on the Commencement Date and shall 
continue until terminated in accordance with the provisions of this 

Agreement. 

8. Variations to this Agreement 

8.1 Any of the Partner Authorities may request a variation to this Agreement by 
making a request in writing to the Lead Authority for governance and 
secretarial Support Services. 

8.2 The Lead Authority for governance and secretarial Support Services shall 
circulate the request to each of the Partner Authorities within 10 Working 

Days of receipt of the request for consideration and approval by the Partner 
Authorities. 

8.3 If all of the Partner Authorities approve the variation then the Lead Authority 

for governance and secretarial Support Services shall arrange for the 
preparation of an appropriate Deed of Variation to this Agreement to be 

prepared for execution by all of the Partner Authorities and such change 
shall only take effect upon completion of that Deed of Variation and the costs 
associated with the preparation of such a Deed of Variation shall be shared 

equally between the Partner Authorities. 

8.4 If one of the Partner Authorities does not approve the change then the 

change to this Agreement shall not occur. 

9. Withdrawal from the Joint Committee 

9.1 Any Partner Authority which wishes to withdraw from the Joint Committee 

shall give not less than 6 months’ notice to the other Partner Authority, 
including the Lead Authority for governance and secretarial Support 

Services, of its intention to do so.  The relevant Lead Authority for 
governance and secretarial Support Services shall consult the other Partner 
Authority they are serving notice on to give due consideration to: 

9.1.1 any loss of funding which may arise from such withdrawal to include 
any non-payment, clawback or repayment of such funding; and 

Page 16



 

7 

9.1.2 any other loss, liability, damage, claim or expense 

which would be incurred by the Partner Authority upon which notice has 

been served by reason of such withdrawal from the Joint Committee. 

9.2 The Partner Authority wishing to withdraw from the Joint Committee 

undertakes, as a condition of such withdrawal, to make, prior to withdrawal, 
such reasonable payment or payments which fairly reflect the actual losses 
caused by or anticipated as a result of the withdrawal as shall be determined 

by the other Partner Authority pursuant to clauses 4, 6 and 9.1 above and no 
notice under this clause 9 shall take effect unless and until such payment 

has been made. 

9.3 The Joint Committee reserves the right to recover from the other party to this 
Agreement the costs of any claims, costs, expenses, losses or liabilities of 

any nature or which have been caused by any act or omission of that party 
and which are discovered after that party’s withdrawal from this Agreement. 

9.4 Where a party’s withdrawal brings about a decision to terminate this 
Agreement, the provisions of clause 10 shall apply. 

10. Termination of this Agreement 

10.1 The Partner Authorities agree that this Agreement may be determined upon 
terms agreed by both Partner Authorities. 

10.2 In the event of termination of this Agreement: 

10.2.1 any Partner Authority shall supply to the other Partner Authority, 
when requested, any information which the other Partner Authority 

requires for the continued provision by that other party of any of the 
Agreed Functions; 

10.2.2 without prejudice to clause 17 below, any Intellectual Property Rights 
created under this Agreement shall be owned by the Partner 
Authorities in equal proportions; and 

10.2.3 each of the Partner Authorities shall undertake to pay such 
reasonable payment or payments which fairly reflect the obligations 

of that Partner Authority pursuant to this Agreement on the basis set 
out in clauses 4, 6 and 9. 

10.3 It shall be the duty of both of the parties to try to minimise any losses arising 

from the determination of this Agreement.  

11. Internal Dispute Resolution 

11.1 The Partner Authorities (and where the context requires, the Chief 
Executives of the Partner Authorities) undertake and agree to pursue a 
positive approach towards dispute resolution which seeks (in the context of 

this joint working arrangement) to identify a solution at the lowest operational 
level that is appropriate to the subject of the dispute and which avoids legal 

proceedings and maintains a strong working relationship between the 
parties. 

11.2 Any dispute or difference shall, in the first instance, be referred to the 

relevant Partnership Leader to resolve in liaison with both Partner 

Page 17



 

8 

Authorities.  In the event that such matters cannot be resolved within 10 
Working Days it shall be referred to the Chief Executives and, in default of 

agreement, it shall be referred to the Joint Committee for determination. 

11.3 In the event of any dispute or difference between the Partner Authorities 

relating to this Agreement which it has not been possible to resolve through 
the decision making processes of the Joint Committee (whether this be a 
matter of interpretation or otherwise) the matter shall be referred to 

arbitration in accordance with clause 12. 

12. Arbitration 

If at any time any dispute or difference shall arise between the Partner 
Authorities, or any of them, which they are not able to resolve in accordance 
with this Agreement the same shall be referred to and settled by a single 

arbitrator to be appointed by agreement by the Partner Authorities; or in 
default of agreement, nominated by application of the Partner Authorities by 

application of either of the Partner Authorities by the Secretary of State 
where the dispute or difference relates to costs and expenses arising under 
this Agreement, or by the President of the Law Society of England and 

Wales in respect of any other matter. 

13. Notices 

13.1 Any demand, notice or other communication given in connection with or 
required by this Agreement shall be made in writing and shall be delivered 
to, or sent to the recipient by:  

13.1.1 Hand delivering to the address set out at the beginning of this 
Agreement (or such other address as may be notified in writing from 

time to time); 

13.1.2 pre-paid first class post to the address set out at the beginning of this 
Agreement (or such other address as may be notified in writing from 

time to time); 

13.1.3 by e-mail to the address as may be notified in writing from time to 

time. 

13.2 Any such demand, notice or other communication shall be deemed to have 
been duly served: 

13.2.1 if delivered by hand, when left at the proper address for service; 

13.2.2 if given or made by pre-paid first class post, two Working Days after 

being posted; 

13.2.3 if sent by facsimile, at the time of transmission provided that a 
confirmatory copy is, on the same day that the facsimile is 

transmitted, sent by pre-paid first class post in the manner provided 
for in clause 13.1; or 

13.2.4 if sent by e-mail, at the time of transmission 

provided, in each case, that if the time of such deemed service is either after 
4.00pm on a Working Day or on a day other than a Working Day, service 

shall be deemed to occur instead at 10.00am on the next Working Day. 

Page 18



 

9 

14. Freedom of Information 

14.1 The Partner Authorities acknowledge that each is subject to the 

requirements of the FOIA and the EIR.  

14.2 In accordance with clause 14.1 the Partner Authorities shall provide all 

necessary assistance and cooperation as reasonably requested by one 
another to enable them to comply with their obligations under the FOIA and 
EIR. 

14.3 The Partner Authorities acknowledge that one or other of them may be 
required under the FOIA or EIR to disclose Information (including Information 

that may be deemed to be commercially sensitive) without consulting or 
obtaining consent from the other. The Partner Authorities shall take 
reasonable steps to notify one another of a Request For Information (in 

accordance with the Secretary of State’s section 45 Code of Practice on the 
Discharge of the Functions of Public Authorities under Part 1 of the FOIA) to 

the extent that it is permissible and reasonably practical for them to do so but 
(notwithstanding any other provision in this agreement) the Partner Authority 
that received the Request for Information shall be responsible for 

determining in its absolute discretion whether any commercially sensitive 
information and/or any other information is exempt from disclosure in 

accordance with the FOIA and/or the EIR. 

15. Data Protection 

15.1 This clause sets out the framework for the sharing of personal data between 

the parties as data controllers. Each party acknowledges that one party (the 
Data Discloser) may disclose to the other party (the Data Recipient) any 

Personal Data collected by the Data Discloser for the Agreed Functions. 

15.2 Each party shall comply with all the obligations imposed on a controller 
under the Data Protection Legislation, and any material breach of the Data 

Protection Legislation by one party shall, if not remedied within 30 days of 
written notice from the other party, give grounds to the other party to 

terminate this agreement with immediate effect. 

15.3 Particular obligations relating to data sharing. Each party shall: 

15.3.1 ensure that it has all necessary notices and consents in place to 

enable lawful transfer of Personal Data to the Permitted Recipients 
for the Agreed Functions; 

15.3.2 give full information to any data subject whose personal data may be 
processed under this agreement of the nature such processing. This 
includes giving notice that, on the termination of this agreement, 

personal data relating to them may be retained by or, as the case 
may be, transferred to one or more of the Permitted Recipients, their 

successors and assignees; 

15.3.3 process Personal Data only for the Agreed Functions; 

15.3.4 not disclose or allow access to Personal Data to anyone other than 

the Permitted Recipients; 

Page 19



 

10 

15.3.5 ensure that all Permitted Recipients are subject to written contractual 
obligations concerning Personal Data (including obligations of 

confidentiality) which are no less onerous than those imposed by this 
agreement; 

15.3.6 ensure that it has in place appropriate technical and organisational 
measures, reviewed and approved by the other party, to protect 
against unauthorised or unlawful processing of personal data and 

against accidental loss or destruction of, or damage to, personal 
data; and 

15.3.7 not transfer any Personal Data outside the UK unless the transferor: 

15.3.7.1 complies with the provisions of Articles 26 of the UK 
GDPR (in the event the third party is a joint controller); 

and 

15.3.7.2 ensures that (i) the transfer is to a country approved by 

the Information Commissioner as providing adequate 
protection pursuant to Article 45 UK GDPR; (ii) there are 
appropriate safeguards in place pursuant to Article 46 UK 

GDPR; or (iii) one of the derogations for specific situations 
in Article 49 UK GDPR applies to the transfer. 

15.4 Each party shall assist the other in complying with all applicable 
requirements of the Data Protection Legislation. In particular, each party 
shall: 

15.4.1 consult with the other party about any notices given to data subjects 
in relation to Personal Data; 

15.4.2 promptly inform the other party about the receipt of any data subject 
access request; 

15.4.3 provide the other party with reasonable assistance in complying with 

any data subject access request; 

15.4.4 not disclose or release any Personal Data in response to a data 

subject access request without first consulting the other party 
wherever possible; 

15.4.5 assist the other party, at the cost of the other party, in responding to 

any request from a data subject and in ensuring compliance with its 
obligations under the Data Protection Legislation with respect to 

security, breach notifications, impact assessments and consultations 
with supervisory authorities or regulators; 

15.4.6 notify the other party without undue delay on becoming aware of any 

breach of the Data Protection Legislation; 

15.4.7 at the written direction of the Data Discloser, delete or return any 

Personal Data and copies thereof to the Data Discloser on 
termination of this agreement unless required by law to store the 
personal data; 

Page 20



 

11 

15.4.8 use compatible technology for the processing of Personal Data to 
ensure that there is no lack of accuracy resulting from personal data 

transfers; 

15.4.9 maintain complete and accurate records and information to 

demonstrate its compliance with this clause 15.4 and allow for audits 
by the other party or the other party's designated auditor; and 

15.4.10 provide the other party with contact details of at least one employee 

as point of contact and responsible manager for all issues arising out 
of the Data Protection Legislation, including the joint training of 

relevant staff, the procedures to be followed in the event of a data 
security breach, and the regular review of the parties' compliance 
with the Data Protection Legislation. 

15.5 Each party shall indemnify the other against all liabilities, costs, expenses, 
damages and losses (including but not limited to any direct, indirect or 

consequential losses, loss of profit, loss of reputation and all interest, 
penalties and legal costs (calculated on a full indemnity basis) and all other 
reasonable professional costs and expenses) suffered or incurred by the 

indemnified party arising out of or in connection with the breach of the Data 
Protection Legislation by the indemnifying party, its employees or agents, 

provided that the indemnified party gives to the indemnifier prompt notice of 
such claim, full information about the circumstances giving rise to it, 
reasonable assistance in dealing with the claim and sole authority to 

manage, defend and/or settle it. 

16. Audit 

16.1 Any accounts and/or documents relating to any Agreed Function and this 
Agreement shall be the subject of audit by any external auditor appointed by 
any of the Partner Authorities and shall be open to inspection by any 

external auditor appointed by the Audit Commission. 

16.2 Any increased cost in undertaking any audit relating to the Agreed Functions 

and this Agreement shall be shared pro rata between the Partner Authorities 
on such terms as may be agreed by the Partner Authorities. 

17. Intellectual Property 

17.1 The Partner Authorities intend that, notwithstanding any secondment, any 
Intellectual Property Rights created in the course of carrying out any of the 

Agreed Functions shall vest in the Partner Authority whose employee 
created them (or in the case of any Intellectual Property Rights created 
jointly by employees of all of the Partner Authorities, in the party that is the 

agreed lead party for that part of the Agreed Function that the Intellectual 
Property Rights relates to). 

17.2 Where any Intellectual Property Rights vest in either Partner Authority in 
accordance with the intention set out in clause 17.1 above, that Partner 
Authority shall grant an irrevocable licence to the other Partner Authority to 

use those Intellectual Property Rights for the purposes of the Agreed 
Function. 

Page 21



 

12 

18. Force Majeure 

All parties shall be released from their respective obligations in the event that 

a Force Majeure Event renders the performance of this Agreement not 
reasonably practicable whereupon all money due to any party under this 

Agreement shall be paid immediately and clause 8 shall apply as if both 
Partner Authorities in membership of the Joint Committee had agreed to 
determine this Agreement. 

19. Severability 

19.1 If any provision or part-provision of this Agreement is or becomes invalid, 

illegal or unenforceable, it shall be deemed modified to the minimum extent 
necessary to make it valid, legal and enforceable. If such modification is not 
possible, the relevant provision or part-provision shall be deemed deleted. 

Any modification to or deletion of a provision or part-provision under this 
clause shall not affect the validity and enforceability of the rest of this 

Agreement. 

19.2 If any provision or part-provision of this Agreement is invalid, illegal or 
unenforceable, the parties shall negotiate in good faith to amend such 

provision so that, as amended, it is legal, valid and enforceable, and, to the 
greatest extent possible, achieves the intended commercial result of the 

original provision. 

20. Successors 

This Agreement shall be binding upon, and shall endure to the benefit of, 

each party’s successors and permitted assigns. 

21. Relationship of the parties 

Each of the parties is an independent local authority and nothing contained 
in this Agreement shall be construed to imply that there is any relationship 
between the parties of a legal partnership or of principal/agent or of 

employer/employee.  Except to the extent expressly permitted by the terms 
of this Agreement or where otherwise expressly authorised in writing, no 

party shall have any right or authority to act on behalf of another party or to 
bind another party by contract or otherwise. 

22. Third party rights 

The parties agree that they do not intend that any third party which may 
benefit from this Agreement shall have any rights of enforcement under the 

terms of the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999. 

23. Entire agreement 

23.1 This Agreement, the schedules and the documents annexed to it or 

otherwise referred to in it constitute the entire agreement between the 
parties and supersedes and extinguishes all previous agreements, promises, 

assurances, warranties, representations and understandings between them, 
whether written or oral, relating to its subject matter. 

Page 22



 

13 

23.2 Each party agrees that it shall have no remedies in respect of any statement, 
representation, assurance or warranty (whether made innocently or 

negligently) that is not set out in this Agreement.  Each party agrees that it 
shall have no claim for innocent or negligent misrepresentation or negligent 

misstatement based on any statement in this Agreement. 

24. Governing law 

This Agreement and any dispute or claim arising out of or in connection with 

it or its subject matter or formation (including non-contractual disputes or 
claims) shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the law of 

England and Wales. 

 

This document has been executed as a deed and is delivered and takes effect on 

the date stated at the beginning of it. 

 

EXECUTED as a DEED by the 
affixing of the COMMON SEAL of 
NORTH DEVON DISTRICT 

COUNCIL 

  

in the presence of: ................................. 

  Authorised Signatory 

  

EXECUTED as a DEED by the 

affixing of the COMMON SEAL of 
TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

  

in the presence of: ................................. 

  Authorised Signatory 

 

Page 23



 

14 

SCHEDULE 1 
Terms of Reference of the Joint Committee 

1. Each of the Partner Authorities shall appoint seven members (being elected 
members of that Partner Authority) as its nominated members of the Joint 

Committee.  The members appointed shall have full voting rights.  The 
members appointed must include:  

1.1 the Leader of each Partner Authority; and 

1.2 Lead Members for Economy, Environment, Climate, Planning, Housing and 
Community or such other members from TDC as TDC shall consider 

appropriate with the equivalent or such other members from NDDC as 
NDDC shall consider appropriate.  

2. Each Partner Authority may nominate one or more substitute members to 

attend any meeting in place of an appointed member from that Partner 
Authority and notification being given to the Lead Authority responsible for 

governance and secretarial Support Services, before the start of the 
meeting.  The member appointed as a substitute shall have full voting rights 
where the member for whom they are substituting does not attend.  If all of a 

Partner Authority’s nominated members attend a meeting of the Joint 
Committee, any named substitute may also attend as an observer but shall 

not be entitled to vote. 

3. Each member of the Joint Committee shall comply with the Code of Conduct 
of their Partner Authority when acting as a member of the Joint Committee. 

4. Each of the Partner Authorities may remove any of its nominated members 
or substitute members of the Joint Committee and appoint a different 

member or substitute to the Joint Committee by giving written notice to the 
Lead Authority for governance and secretarial Support Services. 

5. Each Partner Authority shall have seven votes.  These shall be exercised by 

the nominated members who are elected members of the Partner Authority.  
In the absence of a Partner Authority’s nominated member, a vote may be 

exercised by the named substitute who is an elected member of the Partner 
Authority. 

6. Each member of the Joint Committee shall serve upon the Joint Committee 

for as long as he or she is appointed to the Joint Committee by the relevant 
Partner Authority but a member shall cease to be a member of the Joint 

Committee if he or she ceases to be a member of the Partner Authority 
appointing him or her as a member of the Joint Committee. 

7. Any casual vacancies howsoever arising shall be filled by the Partner 

Authority from which the vacancy arises by notice in writing sent to the Lead 
Authority for governance and secretarial Support Services. 

8. Meetings of the Joint Committee shall be held at the offices of the member 
appointed as chairperson, unless otherwise agreed by the Joint Committee. 

Page 24



 

15 

9. The Partner Authority hosting the first meeting shall appoint one of its 
nominated members as chairperson and that member shall remain 

chairperson until the first meeting taking place after the elapse of one year 
from the time of his or her appointment unless he or she ceases to be a 

member of the Joint Committee.  On the expiry of the first chairperson’s term 
of office as chairperson, the Partner Authority which did not appoint the first 
chairperson shall appoint one of its nominated members as chairperson for a 

period of one year from the time of his or her appointment.  The same 
procedure shall be followed for the appointment of chairperson in 

subsequent years. 

10. The Partner Authority which has not appointed the chairperson of the Joint 
Committee in any year shall appoint one of its nominated members as vice 

chairperson. 

11. The Joint Committee shall meet once every quarter unless otherwise 

determined by the Joint Committee. 

12. The Lead Authority for governance and secretarial Support Services may call 
additional meetings by providing at least five clear days’ notice to members 

of the Joint Committee, for the purposes of resolving urgent matters arising 
between the bi-monthly meetings of the Joint Committee.  The Lead 

Authority for governance and secretarial Support Services must call a 
meeting of the Joint Committee if at least five members of the Joint 
Committee from each Partner Authority requests it or if the Chief Executive 

of both Partner Authorities requests it. 

13. Meetings shall be notified to members of the Joint Committee by the Lead 

Authority for governance and secretarial Support Services. 

14. The Lead Authority for governance and secretarial Support Services shall 
publish the agenda for each meeting of the Joint Committee no later than 

five clear Working Days before the date of the relevant meeting. 

15. The Lead Authority for governance and secretarial Support Services shall 

send, electronically, to all members and relevant officers of each Partner 
Authority, the agenda for each meeting of the Joint Committee no later than 
five clear Working Days before the date of the relevant meeting.   

16. The Lead Authority for governance and secretarial Support Services shall 
arrange for written minutes to be taken of each meeting of the Joint 

Committee and shall arrange for an officer to present them to the Joint 
Committee at its next meeting for approval as a correct record.  If the Joint 
Committee confirms that the minutes contain an accurate record of the 

previous meeting, those minutes shall be signed by the chairperson and vice 
chairperson. 

17. Meetings of the Joint Committee will commence at 10.00am unless 
otherwise agreed by the Joint Committee.  Meetings of the Joint Committee 
shall end no later than 1.00pm unless otherwise agreed by the Joint 

Committee. 

Page 25



 

16 

18. A meeting of the Joint Committee shall require a quorum of seven members 
with a minimum of three members, who are entitled to attend and vote, 

coming from one Partner Authority with the remainder, to make the meeting 
at least quorate, from the other Partner Authority.  If there is a quorum of 

members present but neither the chair nor the vice-chair is present, the 
members present shall designate one member to preside as chair for that 
meeting. 

19. Subject to the provisions of any enactment, all questions coming or arising 
before the Joint Committee shall be decided by a majority of the Partner 

Authority members of the Joint Committee immediately present and voting 
thereon.  Subject to the provisions of any enactment, in the case of an 
equality of votes the chairperson shall have a second or casting vote but, 

before exercising this, the chairperson shall consider whether it is 
appropriate to defer the matter to the next meeting of the Joint Committee. 

20. Any member of the Joint Committee may request the Joint Committee to 
record the votes of individual members of the Joint Committee on a matter 
for decision. 

21. A member, when speaking, shall address the chairperson.  If two or more 
members wish to speak, the chairperson shall call on one to speak.  While a 

member is speaking all other members shall remain silent. 

22. A member shall direct his/her speech to the question under discussion or to 
a personal explanation or to a point of order. 

23. Only one amendment to a proposal may be moved and discussed at a time 
and no further amendment shall be moved until the amendment under 

discussion has been disposed of, providing the chairperson may permit two 
or more amendments to be discussed (but not voted on) together if 
circumstances suggest that this course would facilitate the proper conduct of 

the Joint Committee’s business. 

24. If an amendment is lost, other amendments may be moved on the original 

motion.  If an amendment is carried, the motion, as amended, shall take the 
place of the original motion and shall become the motion upon which any 
further amendment may be moved. 

25. The order of business shall be indicated in the agenda for the meeting. 

26. When a motion is under debate by the Joint Committee no other motion shall 

be moved except the following: 

26.1 to amend the motion; 

26.2 to adjourn the meeting; 

26.3 to adjourn the debate; 

26.4 to proceed to the next business; 

26.5 that the question may now be put; 

26.6 that a member shall not be further heard; 

Page 26



 

17 

26.7 by the chairperson, that a member leave the meeting; 

26.8 a motion under section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 to 

exclude the public; or 

26.9 to postpone consideration on an item. 

27. A member may move without comment at the conclusion of a speech of 
another member, “That the Committee proceed to the next business”, “That 
the question may now be put”, “That the debate is now adjourned”, or “That 

the Committee now adjourn”, on the seconding of which the chair shall 
proceed as follows: 

27.1 on a motion to proceed to next business: unless in his/her opinion the matter 
before the meeting has been insufficiently discussed to put to the vote, the 
motion to proceed to next business; 

27.2 on a motion that the question may now be put: unless in his/her opinion the 
matter before the meeting has been insufficiently discussed he/she shall first 

put to the vote the motion that the question may now be put; or 

27.3 on a motion to adjourn the debate or meeting: if in his/her opinion the matter 
before the meeting has not been sufficiently discussed and cannot 

reasonably be sufficiently discussed on that occasion put the adjournment 
motion to the vote. 

The ruling of the chair shall not be open for discussion. 

28. Any member of the Partner Authorities who is not a member of the Joint 
Committee is entitled to attend the Joint Committee and make 

representations in respect of Non-Restricted and Restricted Items by leave 
of the chairperson (but shall not be entitled to vote or take part in the 

consideration or discussion of any business), and comments will be recorded 
only on the direction of the chairperson. 

29. The following elected representatives are entitled to attend the Joint 

Committee and make representations in respect of Non-Restricted Items to 
the Joint Committee by leave of the chairperson (but shall not be entitled to 

vote or take part in the consideration or discussion of any business) and 
comments will be recorded only on the direction of the chairperson: 

29.1 Members of parish councils within the districts of the Partner Authorities; 

29.2 Members of Devon County Council; and 

29.3 Members of Parliament for the residents of the Partner Authorities.   

30. Meetings of the Joint Committee will be open to the public except to the 
extent that they are excluded under paragraph 32. 

31. Members of the public wishing to address the Joint Committee (or a sub-

committee of the Joint Committee) on Non-Restricted Items contained within 
the agenda for the meeting shall be given the opportunity to do so subject to: 

31.1 the opportunity being extended to one or more person(s) at the discretion of 
the chairperson to speak in support of each agenda item and one or more 

Page 27



 

18 

person(s) at the discretion of the chairperson to speak against each agenda 
item when called to do so by the chairperson; 

31.2 an indication of the desire to speak on the agenda item being made by the 
person in writing not less than two days before the scheduled Committee 

Meeting. The written request must be sent by e-mail to 
memberservices@northdevon.gov.uk or such other address as provided by 
the Lead Authority for governance and secretarial support; 

31.3 each person addressing the Joint Committee or sub-committee of the Joint 
Committee being limited to three minutes’ speech; 

31.4 in the event of the person having registered to speak on an agenda item not 
wishing to take up their right to speak on the agenda item because it was 
deferred, that person will automatically be given the right to speak on the 

agenda item at the next meeting of the Joint Committee or sub-committee of 
the Joint Committee; and 

31.5 the chairperson of the meeting having discretion to rule that a person 
wishing to address the meeting shall not be heard if, in the chairperson’s 
view, that issue or the organisation or the person wishing to make the 

representation on that issue has received an adequate hearing. 

32. In accordance with the requirements of the 1972 Act, the public or press 

must be excluded from a meeting by resolution of the Joint Committee during 
an item of business if that item includes:  

32.1 confidential information, as defined in section 100A(3) of the 1972 Act; or  

32.2 exempt information, as defined in section 100I of the 1972 Act. 

33. The Joint Committee may delegate a function to an officer. 

34. The Joint Committee may appoint such task teams or working groups as 
they consider appropriate in order to consider and report to the Joint 
Committee on specific matters. 

35. Any contractual arrangements that relate to an Agreed Function will be 
undertaken by one of the Partner Authorities and that Partner Authority shall 

apply its own financial regulations and contract procedure rules to such an 
arrangement.  The Partnership Leader of the Partner Authority that is 
incurring the expenditure will normally determine which of the Partner 

Authority’s financial regulations and contract procedure rules will apply and, 
in the event of any dispute or uncertainty, the matter should be referred to 

the Chief Executives for determination. 

36. The Lead Authority responsible for governance and secretarial Support 
Services shall provide administrative support services to the Joint Committee 

on such terms as may be agreed from time to time between the Partner 
Authorities.  The Partner Authorities shall make available committee officers 

to provide administrative services at the meetings of the Joint Committee as 
appropriate and in consideration of where the meetings are being held. 

Page 28

mailto:memberservices@northdevon.gov.uk


 

19 

37. The Lead Authority for legal Support Services shall provide the Joint 
Committee with legal advice and support on such terms as may be agreed 

from time to time between the Partner Authorities. 

38. The Lead Authority for financial Support Services shall provide the Joint 

Committee with financial advice and support on such terms as may be 
agreed from time to time between the Partner Authorities. 

Page 29



 

20 

SCHEDULE 2 
Agreed Functions 

1. The Joint Committee shall be responsible for and shall have delegated to it 
the following functions of the Partner Authorities: 

1.1 The preparation, review and/or approval of  

1.1.1 Development Plan Documents; 

1.1.2 Supplementary Planning Documents; 

1.1.3 Joint documents that supplement/complement the Development Plan 
Documents (Namely, Local Development Schemes, Statements of 

Community Involvement, Authority Monitoring Reports and 
Infrastructure Funding Statements); 

1.1.4 The outcomes from policy performance monitoring and the need to 

undertake any resultant actions, on such matters as the 
maintenance of housing delivery rates and a joint five year land 

supply to required levels; 

1.1.5 Proposals for delivery of key infrastructure (e.g. flood defences, link 
road improvements, health infrastructure) where there are clear 

cross boundary implications; and 

1.1.6 Responses to consultations from the government, other authorities, 

external agencies and other bodies, including transportation related 
consultations, where they would have a significant impact on the 
delivery of the Local Plan or on the Districts’ environment. 

1.2 The consideration and noting of associated evidence documents (for 
example, Sustainability Appraisals and Habitat Regulations Assessments) 

1.3 Such other functions related to the above listed Agreed Functions which it is 
agreed between the Partner Authorities should be included as an Agreed 
Function. 

2. The delegated powers referred to above in paragraph 1.1 shall be limited to 
the preparation of agreed Development Plan Documents but shall not 

include the final adoption of such Development Plan Documents which shall 
be reserved to the respective Partner Authorities and referred back as a 
recommendation by the Joint Committee for a decision as to adoption by the 

respective Partner Authorities.  The Joint Committee shall take account any 
reservations or objections subsequently received from either Partner 

Authority before referring the Development Plan Documents back for 
adoption. 

3. The Joint Committee shall act in the manner laid down in the Terms of 

Reference of the Joint Committee as set out in Schedule 1. 

4. The Joint Committee shall act as the ultimate arbiter in the case of 

unresolved disputes between the Partner Authorities unless such matters are 
referred to arbitration pursuant to clause 12. 

Page 30



 

21 

5. It has been agreed that the Agreed Functions as referred to in paragraph 1 
should be delivered in the manner laid down in this Agreement. 

Page 31



 

22 

SCHEDULE 3 

Support Services 

1. To enable the Partnership to function effectively the Joint Committee shall 
require the following key Support Services from the Partner Authorities: 

1.1 legal support and advice; and 

1.2 governance and secretarial support. 

2. Each Support Service shall, from the Commencement Date, be provided by 

the following identified Lead Authority, which may be varied during the term 
of this Agreement by written agreement between the Partner Authorities: 

Support Service Lead Authority 

Legal support and advice TDC 

Governance and secretarial support NDDC 

Page 32



 

23 

SCHEDULE 4 
Financial Arrangements  

 

1. Joint Committee costs 

Annual costs relating to the Joint Committee shall be shared in equal 
proportions between the Partner Authorities, this shall include (but shall not 
be limited to): 

1.1 administrative costs of the Joint Committee; 

1.2 costs of room booking, refreshments and any Joint Committee events (e.g. 

training). 

1.3 any other incidental expenses of the Joint Committee or Joint Committee 
members. 

 

Page 33



 
  

REPORT OF Chief Executive 

To: Full Council 

Subject: Northern Devon Futures 

Date: 5 October 2021 Reference:  

 
 
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT:     
 
For members to decide if they wish to join the Northern Devon Futures Partnership and to appoint 
the Leader of the Council as the representative on the Northern Devon Futures Strategic Board 
 
 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 

  
Members may recall that they received a briefing on the Northern Devon Futures (NDF) 
partnership from Sean Mackney, Principal and CEO, Petroc College at the Full Council 
Meeting held on the 9 December 2019. 
 
Sean explained that the partnership was being created with the intention of connecting the 
main partners and initiatives in Northern Devon who will be working together to improve the 
lives of those who live and work in Northern Devon and to plan holistically for the future of 
the area. 
 
 

2. REPORT 

 
The NDF Partnership is founded on the belief that through working together organisations 
can achieve more in support of agendas that the partners share. It recognises that in 
addressing different aspects of improving life in Northern Devon: its economy, the places 
that people live, its health, its education, action that can be taken in one aspect can impact 
(positively or negatively) on other areas. NDF looks to add value through providing a 
perspective that takes a holistic view, exploring and developing the areas where different 
actions can complement more than one agenda positively. 
 
Progress with the partnership over the past 12 months or so has not been as fast as we 
would have liked but the pandemic, and the recovery from it, has shown that it is more 
important than ever for organisations to be working towards similar strategic goals within 
North Devon and Torridge.  There are real opportunities through government agendas such 
as Levelling Up and Build Back Better but the chances of being able to influence outcomes 
will be far stronger if we work in collaboration.   
 
We have been looking at how we can advance the partnership and make it into a recognised 
collaborative body and enable it to really influence the future direction of northern Devon.  
Now is an excellent time to progress this as not only do we have the government agendas 
mentioned above, but both local authorities are about to embark on a comprehensive review 
of the Local Plan, the primary spatial strategy for the area, which should be influenced by the 
overall Vision for the area set by the partnership. 
 
A letter has been sent from the Chief Executives of Torridge District Council, North Devon 
Council and Petroc College to the main partners seeking a commitment, and any comments, 
positive or negative, on the proposals. This will then be followed by an inaugural meeting 

Page 34

Agenda Item 8



 
  

towards the end of October/beginning of November where we can discuss the proposed 
Vision and plans and set the agenda for the way forward 
 
The attached document, (Appendix 1) Northern Devon Futures – The Way Forward - 
describes the proposed way forward as well as progress to date and the proposed new 
structure for the partnership. 
 
 

3. IMPLICATIONS 

 
Legal Implications 
No specific legal implications 
 
Financial Implications 
None 
 
Human Resources Implications 
Some officer resource needed 
 
Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications 
This will be covered by one of the action groups within Northern Devon Futures 
 
Equality/Diversity 
Not applicable 
 
Risk Management 
Not applicable 
 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
This report is in relation to the action in the Council’s Strategic Plan - “Develop a long term 
vision for the future of Northern Devon with all relevant partners” 
 
Data Protection (GDPR) Implications 
Not applicable 
 
Climate Change 
There is a climate emergency action group within Northern Devon Futures. 
 
 
 

4. CONCLUSIONS 
 

Working in collaboration with a range of partners as part of Northern Devon Futures will 
increase our ability to influence outcomes at regional and national level and will give us a 
stronger voice.   
 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

It is recommended that: 
 

 Torridge District Council join the Northern Devon Futures partnership and commit to its 
vision 
and, 

 The Leader of the Council be the nominated representative on the Northern Devon 
Futures Strategic Board 

Page 35



Appendix 1 

Northern Devon Futures – The Way Forward 
 

What is Northern Devon Futures? 
 

Northern Devon Futures is the partnership of organisations  working together to improve the 
lives of those who live and work in Northern Devon and to plan for the future of the area.  

 
Vision 

 
The partnership will agree its vision, aims and objectives at its next meeting, following 

consultation. The draft vision proposed is set out below: 
 

‘The Vision of the Partnership is that by 2050 Northern Devon is healthy, prosperous and 
sustainable, recognised for its aspiration, innovation, and ability to get things done. A place 

where all are able to succeed and no one is left behind.’ 
 
Rationale 
The NDF Partnership is founded on the belief that through working together organisations 
can achieve more in support of agendas that the partners share. It recognises that in 
addressing different aspects of improving life in Northern Devon: its economy, the places 
that people live, its health, its education, action that can be taken in one aspect can impact 
(positively or negatively) on other areas. NDF looks to add value through providing a 
perspective that takes a holistic view, exploring and developing the areas where different 
actions can complement more than one agenda positively. 
 
Working together in partnership can be time consuming. In a relatively small population 
such as Northern Devon, with organisations having relatively limited staffing capacities, it is 
often the case that the same individuals and organisations are represented in a number of 
different forums. The region cannot afford to waste time through duplication of effort 

through these meetings and so the NDF Partnership seeks to make the most efficient use of 
people’s time, so that together we have the capacity to achieve more. 

 
It is clear that Northern Devon has had some particular challenges for some time and that 
these have been exacerbated by COVID. In terms of educational achievement, health 
outcomes, average salary, innovation and productivity in businesses, skill levels of the 
working age population, broadband infrastructure, transport infrastructure, and access to 
services, the region experiences some significant disadvantages in comparison with the rest 
of Devon and indeed in many areas with the rest of the country. Some of these are features 
of all areas of economic deprivation, others are particular challenges faced by rural and 
coastal areas like Northern Devon and require particular solutions.  

 
Northern Devon also has some unique opportunities: a strong community ethos, enviable 
natural capital, some significant pockets of innovation and excellence, and a new 
attractiveness for people who recognise, following covid, that physical proximity to London 

Page 36



is not required to run successful, well networked businesses. Partners have however at the 
same time not historically succeeded in attracting sufficient investment from regional and 
national funders and investors to tackle the significant challenges of the region and 
capitalise on the opportunities. Other cities and regions have been far more successful in 
securing the investment necessary to make things happen. They have done so by preparing 
the long-term strategies for their areas, by developing business plans and project outlines 
for the elements that could be the blocks that pave the roadmaps to the future vision, and 

by levering the combined influence of their institutions, organisations and citizens. In short, 
they have developed a series of investible propositions and challenged Central and Local 

Government not to support them in the delivery of agendas that those bodies share with 
the locality. 

Progress  
The launch meeting of the Northern Devon Futures Partnership in December 2019 saw a 
wide range of partners from a variety of backgrounds and sectors come together to start the 

process of defining the future for Northern Devon. It recognised there is significant goodwill 
and a spirit of cooperation in Northern Devon which could be capitalised on. It agreed that 

to be successful for the people of Northern Devon, citizens, organsiations and businesses 
would need three things from the partnership: Vision and inspiration; a strategic delivery 
capability and commitment from the combined anchor institutions of the region; and local 
community ownership.  
 
It agreed draft Terms of Reference for the Partnership (attached and extended at appendix 
1) and the potential to achieve more through a connected and long-term vision for the 
region spanning a number of inter-related domains. It mapped the landscape and explored 
the challenges and solutions. Officers from a number of organisations were tasked with 
establishing the groups that would set out proposals for a long-term strategy for the area 
and the creation of the action groups that would drive it. The onset of covid diverted many 
organisations towards adapting rapidly to a new way of working and forced them to re-
prioritise. Cooperation continued throughout period but with more of a focus on the 
immediate issues of adapting to covid and supporting members of the community. 
 
In May 2020, the NDF Partnership Board met again.  It took stock of the economic situation 

at that stage and its impact on the region. Presentations were received on the different 
economic development plans being implemented across Devon and the wider LEP area, 

gave endorsement to the two Future Highstreets proposals submitted for Barnstaple and 
Bideford, and reviewed the community volunteering response that was supporting shielding 

and vulnerable citizens across the area. 
 
Three areas of work which would be progressed collaboratively were agreed from that 
second meeting: 

1. Continue to support actions around economic recovery 
2. Establish the NDF Secretariat that will support partners in working together and 

adding value 
3. Resolving issues of regional governance, in particular with the One Northern Devon 

group 
 

Page 37



1. Economic Recovery 
The situation across the extended period of covid created far greater economic impacts 
than would have been the case if covid had been overcome in a shorter period of 
months. A small group of representatives from the District Councils, ND Healthcare 
Trust, Petroc and local partnership experts mapped out some additional activities that 
could be undertaken to support economic recovery, proposals that might be submitted, 
and projects that could be started. This led, inter alia, to: 

 The success of the Barnstaple Future Highstreets proposal 
 The approval of the only e-scooter initiative in a rural area by the Department for 

Transport 

 A grant-funded project in hospitality focused around The Globe hotel in 
Torrington 

 Barnstaple & District Chamber along with ND+ creating a Kickstart Agency to 
enable small firms to have access to Government-funded Kickstart employees, 
and the larger employers of the region creating significant numbers of Kickstart 
jobs for local young people 

 The opening of NODE – the Innovation Centre for start-up businesses in Northern 
Devon 

 A Devon-wide skills initiative, funded by the ESF, to support adults and young 
people to retrain to take jobs in the health and care sectors  

 The Development of the relationship between the Centre of innovation 
excellence (CoTIE) and NODE 

 Plans and proposals around environmental business initiatives 
 
The designation of Levelling Up priority areas by central government, the anticiapted arrival 
of a UK Prosperity Fund, the Government Skills for Jobs white paper, Government Green 
Economy Plan, the apparent speeding up of the national drive to become carbon neutral, 
and the range of initiatives announced in the March 2021 Budget all provide many 
opportunities for further investment in supporting Northern Devon’s economic recovery. 
The level of economic decline in the last 12 months has been stark, making a poor situation 

much worse, and so major joined-up action around jobs, innovation, productivity and green 
growth, would seem an urgent priority. 

 
2. The Northern Devon Futures Secretariat 

To capitalise on the willingness to work collaboratively, to facilitate that collaboration and 
focus its activities, it was important to secure resource to staff a small NDF secretariat. With 

resources being tight, it is of paramount importance that this does not create an overhead 
on activity but adds value. A modest secretariat, with staffing from partners, has now been 

created (see below) which it is envisaged will be added to as opportunities require and as 
new areas of collaborative work take off.  
 
Early in 2021, a small NDF group comprising Bill Blythe, Sarah-Jane Mackenzie-Shapland, 
Andrea Beacham, Rob Passmore, Chris Fuller and David Relph mapped the range of 

initiatives underway within Northern Devon according to the different areas of activity, with 
a view to informing NDF plans for what can be supported further in which areas. The map is 
available at appendix 4.  
 

Page 38



3. Resolve Governance of Regional Groups 
There have been a number of separate groups collaborating in particular areas, but nothing 
that brought all areas together, created a long-term view, and secured Executive and Leader 
level engagement about the wider systems leadership in Northern Devon. The proposals for 
the way that regional groupings may inter-relate and the ways that NDF will support that 
joint working are shown in the diagram attached at appendix 3 and described in the section 
below. In the area of health and wellbeing, there have been frequent and extensive 

conversations between the district councils, Petroc and the Chair, Executive Group and 
Programme Manager of One Northern Devon. The upshot of these discussions has been 

that OND will focus its efforts on health and wellbeing, rather than on taking on a wider 
strategic agenda covering environment and economy and skills. OND will remain as an 

independent group and champion of health and wellbeing and not to join together with 
Northern Devon Futures as part of an integrated delivery partnership at the present time. 

Relationships are positive, the One Northern Devon Programme Manager will work with the 
NDF Secretariat as the conduit to the OND Board and no additional NDF group will be 

established.  When the NDF Partnership agrees its strategic aims, objectives and operating 
plans, OND may reconsider its decision to remain as an independent group and renew 
closer engagement within NDF.  
 
Also in the Health and Care space, the Devon Strategic Transformation Partnership, (shortly 
to become the Integrated Care System (ICS) and, in the next 12 months, taking on 
responsibility for the Clinical Commissioning Group) is establishing ‘Local Care Partnerships’ 
(LCPs) that are expected to take on responsibility for the local management and 
commissioning of clinical performance and to support the transition towards the greater 
integration and new ways of working to support good health associated with the ICS model. 
The LCP is finalising its governance and executive delivery arrangements, though it is 
expected that it will wish to engage with the broad cross-section of local strategic system 
leaders that constitute the NDF Partnership. Discussions with the LCP will continue to 
enable the LCP agenda to be well recognised and integrated within the NDF Partnership, 
and to inform NDF’s longer term strategy. 
 
In the Employment and Skills, Economy and Innovation areas, there have been four groups 
in existence, three for some time (the Innovation Board, NDPlus and the Employment and 

Skills Board) and a fourth group (the Covid Recovery Group) only over the last year. With the 
Innovation Board having seen its two major projects, the creation of NODE and the COTIE 

centre, come to fruition in the last few months, the Chair of the Innovation Board has 
stepped down and the Innovation Board gave its support for the proposals to re-constitute 

the agenda within NDF as set out in this document. There is an opportunity for these 
groups, all supported by the District Councils or Petroc, to come together to create a single 

more coherent action group in the economy, skills and innovation area, and to reduce the 
overhead associated with the support of the groups. Proposals in this respect are provided 

later in this document. 
 

In the Education and Young People area, the NORDAB group of headteachers of the 
secondary schools in Northern Devon have been meeting for some time, along with Petroc, 
as a support network. More recently the group has come together to develop a regional 
strategy for Young People and put forward proposals for a local solution to the particular 

Page 39



challenges for young people in ND, that lead to some of the worst social mobility, 
attainment and disadvantage in the country. The group is keen to connect its work with the 
wider agenda of NDF and look to facilitate complementary action across education, 
community, health and opportunity. Proposals in respect to this are made later in the paper.  

Contacting Northern Devon Futures 
To get in touch with Northern Devon Futures and get involved, contact the Secretariat. 

 
The contact for the NDF Secretariat is info@northerndevonfutures.org.uk . 

 
The team services the meetings of the Strategic Board and Action Groups and progresses 

the Partnership’s strategy and actions. Team members are employed by partner 
organisations and undertake the NDF Secretariat as part of their roles. Each member of the 

secretariat team takes the lead for a different aspect of NDF’s work. A website will be 
developed in due course. The Secretariat Team is: 

1. Bill Blythe – Head of Secretariat 
2. Nicola Allen – Children and Young People 

3. Dominie Dunbrook/Chris Fuller – Economy, Innovation and Skills  
4. Andrea Beacham (OND) – Health and Wellbeing liaison 
5. Sarah Jane Mackenzie Shapland – Place and Community 
6. Louise Adam - New Funding Proposals Support 
7. Janet Williams/Joint Climate Emergency Officer -  Climate Emergency 
8. Jon Walter - Governance Services 

 

The Roadmap for Northern Devon Futures 
 
Following the consultation period where comments and support will be sought from 
regional stakeholders, the following tasks will be undertaken. 
 
The Partnership Strategic Board will next meet in September 2021. Its proposed 
membership and terms of reference are at appendix 1 as part of the proposed terms of 

reference for the wider NDF Partnership.  
 

The draft NDF Strategy will be developed and presented to the Strategic Board  
 
Four new Action Groups (listed below) have been created and will meet at least every 3 
months. The Secretariat will invite members to attend meetings in October 2021: 

 Economy, Innovation and Skills 

 Children and Young People 

 Climate Emergency 
 Place and Community 

 The Health and Wellbeing group has not yet been constituted, as One Northern 
Devon exists in this area and the Local Care Partnership is in the process of being 

formed. Close connections will be made with these groups and the NDF Strategic 
Board 

 

Page 40



 

Governance 
The NDF Partnership comprises representatives of those groups listed in Appendix 1 
together with contributors and groups identified as required members of the themed Action 

Groups, the membership of which will be added to as the Action Groups develop.  The 
Terms of Reference are shown in Appendix 1. 

 

The Consultation Draft of the NDF Strategy – 2022-2027 
 

The Strategic Board will define the approach to producing the strategy, agree the 
consultation draft and seek feedback from stakeholders on it. It will identify aims, objectives 

and impact measures. 
 

Actions Groups will be invited to develop action plans to deliver the agreed strategic 
objectives. 

 
This process will be concluded within four months of the first meeting of the Strategic 
Board. 
 
The Strategic Board will then adopt an annual operating plan comprising the actions from 
the Action Groups.  
 

Further Iterations of the Strategy 
Developing the Strategy 2026-2031 
Extending the Strategy 2031-2041 

Cementing lasting change: Strategy 2041-2051 
 

 
 

  

Page 41



Appendix One: Terms of Reference 

Northern Devon Futures Partnership 
Terms of reference 
Northern Devon Futures Partnership members shall work together and individually in the 
spirit of trust, fairness and mutual co-operation.  The work of the partnership is rooted in a 
spirit of cooperation and we affirm the value of working collaboratively to improve the lives 

of those who work and live in Northern Devon. 

This is the constitution of the Northern Devon Futures Partnership. This constitution does 

not change, replace, substitute or amend in any way the statutory duties or other 
responsibilities of partners. 

It does not change, replace, substitute or amend in any way partners organisations' own 

management or accountability frameworks, or prevent any individual partners' organisation 
from pursuing its own individual actions. 

Roles and Authority 
The main general role of all Members of the Partnership will be to take a Northern Devon-
wide (the geographical area of North Devon and Torridge Districts) perspective and to 

develop consensus and common purpose in the best interests of the area as a whole. 

Members will be recognised for their valuable contribution in bringing ideas, knowledge and 
expertise to the process. 

Whilst recognising that decisions about the use of resources will still remain the preserve of 

individual partners, there is a need to establish consensus endorsement of strategic issues, 
while encouraging opportunities for better ways of working, joint working, delegation and 
joint or shared resources where appropriate. Members will need the appropriate authority 
to speak on behalf of their relevant organisations (proportionate to their role within the 
organisation). 

Legal Status 

The Northern Devon Futures Partnership is an informal partnership. It does not have legal 
status to enter into contracts and will act through partner organisations as appropriate.  

Should there be a need for an Accountable Body for financial matters on behalf of the 
Northern Devon Futures Partnership this will be decided by the Members on a case by case 
basis.  

Key Tasks 
 Agree Strategy, Vision and an annual Operating Plan 
 Create and provide direction to the NDF Action Groups, facilitating synergy between 

them to ensure a joined-up approach 
 Monitor the implementation and impact of its strategy Vision and operating plan 

Page 42



 Identify and report strategic issues, which the Northern Devon Futures Partnership 
should be aware of 

 Identify areas of joint interest, develop partnership responses to these issues, and 
where beneficial, deliver them with and through the partnership 

 Identify funding opportunities and work collaboratively to secure these 
 Provide strategic leadership on area wide issues, identified by partners and agreed by 

the Northern Devon Futures Partnership, where no other appropriate existing 

organisation or partnership can be identified 
 Act to bring together intelligence, expertise and community and business support to 

identify priorities and develop solutions to maximise the town's   economic 
opportunities and address barriers to regeneration 

 Help to represent Northern Devon’s interests to outside bodies, including Central 
Government, the HotSW LEP and the Joint Committee. 

 Minimise bureaucracy and build upon existing structures - helping to demonstrate 
that we have reduced and not added to the 'bureaucratic burden' 

 Focus on the needs of the whole of Northern Devon, with an inclusive concern for all 
citizens, especially the marginalised and disadvantaged 

 Consider what is in the best interests for the common good of Northern Devon and 
weigh this along with the interests of individual organisations on the Strategic Board 
and their sector when making decisions. 

The Northern Devon Futures Partnership Strategic Board  
Membership 

The Northern Devon Futures Partnership will consist of senior representatives from those 

organisations playing a lead role in the area.  

 The composition of the Strategic Board will be as inclusive as practicable covering a 
full range of "key players" balancing this with a realistic maximum size of partnership 
necessary for it to be effective and strategic. 

 The Strategic Board will need to secure the involvement of all the appropriate key 

players, including the public, private, community and voluntary sectors. This should 
allow engagement of residents, community, other public sector and business interests 

that cannot be represented directly on the Northern Devon Futures Strategic Board. 
 Each member of the Strategic Board can name one alternate to attend in his / her 

place. 
 Strategic Board members agree to champion and communicate the partnership 

arrangements of the Northern Devon Futures Partnership throughout their 
organisation, partnership and sector. 

 If a member of the Northern Devon Futures Partnership Strategic Board changes to a 
different employer or loses his or her position, then their membership of the 
Northern Devon Futures Partnership will automatically cease with immediate effect. 

 The aims and objectives of the Partnership will be progressed through a number of 
‘Action Groups’ in themed areas, involving a wider range of stakeholders interested in 

progressing the agenda of the Action Group.  
 
Members will be identified in relation to their leadership in a number of domains: 

 Local Government and MPs 

Page 43



 Environmental/Climate Emergency 
 Economy, Innovation and Skills 

 Community and Place 

 Health and Wellbeing 

 Children and Young People 

 Chairs of the NDF Action Groups 
 

Chairing Arrangements 
The Chair of the Northern Devon Futures Partnership shall be appointed by the members of 
the Strategic Board for a term of office of two-years, renewable for one term so the 

maximum length of time a chair may serve is 4 years. 

The role of the Chair is to chair and manage the meetings of the Northern Devon Futures 
Partnership Strategic Board, creating an environment where all members are able to make a 

full contribution to the Northern Devon Futures Partnership business. 
 

The NDF Secretariat will provide policy and secretariat support to the Northern Devon 
Futures Partnership Strategic Board and the NDF Action Groups. 

Quorum 
 
The Strategic Board requires a quorum of half the members, which must include 

representation from the two District Councils .  
 

Meetings of the Strategic Board 
  
The Strategic Board will meet six-monthly.  
 
Meetings will not be held where there are insufficient members to achieve a quorum or 
insufficient business activity to warrant a meeting being convened. In exceptional 

circumstances a Partnership Board meeting may be convened at other times at the 
discretion of the Board Chair. 

 

Documentation 
Availability In keeping with the Strategic Board’s schedule of meetings, materials for review 

need to be submitted to the Secretary by no later than noon, five Business Days prior to the 
day on which the materials are to be reviewed. Materials are to be sent in soft copy or with 

sufficient numbers of hard copy for each member of the Strategic Board. 
  

Page 44



The NDF Action Groups’ Terms of Reference 
The NDF Partnership Strategic Board will create themed Action Groups to further its 
strategic aims and objectives, dependent on the focus of its agenda. They are designed to 
support implementation of NDF operational plans, to seize opportunities as they arise, 
access resources and drive forward collaborative projects. 
 
Action Groups will meet a minimum of quarterly but as frequently as required to deliver 
their agenda. 
 
Foundation members will be invited to the first meetings of the Action Groups  
Action Groups will appoint a Chair and Vice-Chair from amongst their membership. The 
Chair shall serve for a term of two years, renewable for a maximum of one term, (4 years in 
total). 
The Group may co-opt members as approved by the Chair.  
The Chairs of the Action Groups will be members of the NDF Partnership Strategic Board; 
the Vice Chair shall be their alternate.  
Action Groups will provide reports on their activities to the NDF Strategic Board every six-

months. 
The NDF Secretariat will support the meetings of the Action Groups.   

Page 45



 
 

Annex Two: Proposed Membership of the NDF Partnership Strategic 
Board August 2021 and proposed foundation members of the NDF 
Action Groups 
 
Proposed members of the NDF Partnership Strategic Board are listed below. Proposed 

‘foundation members’ to be invited to form the NDF Action Groups are listed, by Action 
Group, in the section that follows. 

 

Proposed Membership of the NDF Partnership Strategic Board 
 

Geoffrey Cox, MP Torridge and West Devon 
Selaine Saxby MP North Devon  

Councillor Rufus Gilbert, Devon County Council 
Councillor David Worden – Leader, North Devon Council 
Councillor Ken James, Leader, Torridge District Council 
Alison Hernandez, Devon & Cornwall Police and Crime Commissioner 
 
Ken Miles, CEO, North Devon Council 
Steve Hearse, CEO, Torridge District Council 
Phil Norrey, CEO, Devon County Council 
  
Tim Jones – Chair of North Devon Biosphere Foundation  
 
Mike Matthews, MD Lineal Software & Chair of the ND Employment and Skills Board 
Alan Dykes, TDK Lambda – Chair, North Devon+ 
Sean Mackney – Principal and CEO, Petroc College 
David Ralph – CEO Heart of the SW LEP 

Stuart Elford, CEO – Devon and Plymouth Chamber 
Stuart Brocklehurst – CEO, Applegate & Chair of Great-SW Innovation Board/HoTSW LEP 

Director 
 
Toby Davies  – Devon and Cornwall Police 
Paul Britton – Homes England  
 
Suzanne Tracey – Northern Devon Healthcare Trust/Royal Devon & Exeter Trust  
John Womersley – Chair One Northern Devon (proxy group for Health and Wellbeing pro-
tem) 
 

Andy Cotton – CEO, Tarka Learning Partnership Multi Academy Trust  
 

Chairs of the NDF Action Groups 
Economy, Innovation and Skills 

Page 46



Health and Wellbeing (One Northern Devon Board) 
Climate Emergency 
Place and Community 
Children and Young People 
 

Proposed ‘foundation members’ of NDF Action Groups 
Strategic Board members and foundation members will be invited to constitute the Action 
Groups with the support of the NDF Secretariat and invite other stakeholders as appropriate 

to their agendas. 
 

Climate Emergency 
Helen Dobby – Assistant Director, Devon, Cornwall and Isles of Scilley, Environment Agency 

SW 
James Szymankiewicz – Plastic Free ND / CANDo 

Steve Mulberry – Area Of Natural Beauty Partnership 
 

Economy, Innovation and Skills 
Lee Tozer - Department for Work and Pensions 
Paul Mullen – ND Manufacturer Association 
Tim Puttick, TDK Lambda & Director SWIOT (as anchor employer) 
David Barker - North Devon Marketing Board 
Julian Dymond – Town Square 

 

Community and Place 
Toby Davies  – Devon and Cornwall Police 

Paul Britton – Homes England  
Sarah Bryan or Dan James – Exmoor National Park 

Martyn Gimber – North Devon Homes 
TBC - Westcountry Housing 

TBC – ND VS/TTVS 
Keri Denton - One Public Estate group representative 

TBC - Safer Devon 
 

Health and Wellbeing 
John Womersley – Chair One Northern Devon (proxy group for Health and Wellbeing pro-
tem) 
Jane Milligan - CEO Devon Integrated Care System  
Tim Golby, DCC and Local Care Partnership – North 
Darryn Allcorn - CCG/ICS Chief Nurse 

 

Children and Young People 
Andy Cotton – CEO, Tarka Learning Partnership Multi Academy Trust  
TBC NORDAB Secondary Heads representative 
TBC - Primary schools representative 
 

Page 47



Annex Three: Approximate Area Covered by the Northern Devon Futures Partnership 

Page 48



 
 
Appendix Four: Northern Devon Futures organogram

Dedicated 

Secretariat 

Supports delivery of 

NDF strategy and 

operating plan, Board 

and Action Groups. 

Designated lead 

officers for NDF 

themes 

Strategic 
Board

Political, Community, 
Business, Environment, 

Integrated Healthcare, Skills 
leaders

Economy, 
Innovation and 

Skills AG

Place & 
Community AG

Children and 
Young 

People AG

Health and 
Wellbeing*, **

Climate 
Emergency AG

Strategic Board

Agrees l-t vision, sets shared strategic 
objectives***, monitors and enables 

delivery. Democratic Leaders.

CEOs / leadership group of all partners. 

Chairs of Themed Action Groups

System review and assurance.

Themed Action Groups  
Drive collaborative action.
Senior officers. Leaders/Chairs of delivery 

projects and partnerships. Rationalisation 
of multiple legacy groups. 

The Northern Devon Futures Partnership

**The One Northern Devon group focuses on Health and 
Wellbeing in Northern Devon. It has decided to remain 

independent of NDF until the Strategic Board defines its 

strategy, when it may become part of the NDF regional 
delivery partnership.

***Partners retain statutory 
accountability to their individual 

regulators

Major collaborative projects 

delivering thematic priorities, 

synergy and sustainability

Project 
1

Project 
2

Project 
3

Project 
1

Project 
2

Project 
3

Project 
1

Project 
2

Project 
3

Project 
1

Project 
2

Project 
3

Project 
1

Project 
2

Project 
3

NDF 

Secretariat

All NDF 

activities will be 

mapped against 

the 17 UN SDG 
priorities

* The Devon Integrated Care System has not yet 
created its Local Care Partnership Integrated Delivery 

Group. NDF will engage closely with the LCP when it is 

constituted to ensure synergy with the wider NDF 
agenda

P
age 49



 
 

Appendix Five: Example of mapping current and possible investible project ideas 
 
The attached link connects to an example ‘miro’ board, produced mid-way through the Covid period, which maps the way Northern Devon was 
responding to supporting the post-covid recovery. 
 
It shows a range of project ideas, some current, some planned, some speculative for action which could be taken in Northern Devon.  
 
It is included for illustration of the way NDF might collaborate to map further ideas and then consider them for inclusion in its operational 
plans pursued through its Action Groups. 
 
https://miro.com/app/board/o9J_kpu03IQ=/ 
 P

age 50

https://miro.com/app/board/o9J_kpu03IQ=/

	Agenda
	7 Planning Policy Governance
	7a - 16.09.21 -  Joint Planning Policy Committee Agreement

	8 Northern Devon Futures
	7a - Appendix 1 Northern Devon Futures Proposals FINAL


